21

22

23

24

AUDIT COMMITTEE

8 JANUARY 2014

Present: Councillor | Brown (Chair)
Councillor P Taylor (Vice-Chair)
Councillors | Brandon, A Khan and T Williams

Also present. Richard Lawson (Grant Thornton)
Councillor M Watkin (Portfolio Holder for Democracy and
Governance and Shared Services)

Officers: Shared Director of Finance
Head of Democracy and Governance
Head of Finance (Shared Services)
Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service
Business Manager, ICT
Committee and Scrutiny Officer

TRAINING: ROLE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE IN RISK MANAGEMENT

The Head of Democracy and Governance presented the training session on risk
management and the role of the Audit Committee. She explained the Council’s
approach to risk management and the risk matrix, which was used when officers
considered the likelihood of risk and the potential impact. She informed the
Committee that it had an important role and that Members needed to have an
understanding of the strategic risks the Council faced. An updated Risk
Management Strategy was included on the agenda for the Committee’s
approval.

The Head of Democracy and Governance responded to Members’ questions.
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

There were no apologies for absence.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)

There were no disclosures of interest.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2013 were submitted and
signed.



25

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Committee received a report of the Head of Democracy and Governance
which sought approval for the updated Risk Management Strategy and provided
the latest Corporate Risk Register.

Risk Management Strategy

Following a question about changes to the Strategy, the Head of Democracy and
Governance explained that the document had not been updated since 2011.
The Council’s vision and its objectives had been updated.

Councillor Watkin, Portfolio Holder for Democracy and Governance, noted that
under ‘Roles and Responsibilities’ in the Strategy, all Members were tasked with
seeking clarification from the Portfolio Holder if risks had not been identified in
reports. He felt it could be difficult for the Portfolio Holder to provide a
satisfactory response and he would probably need to refer any questions to the
relevant officer.

The Head of Democracy and Governance advised that Portfolio Holders had
been included as they were part of the Mayor's Cabinet. If a Cabinet report did
not identify any risks members should be able to approach the relevant Portfolio
Holder for clarification. She added that if the Committee was minded to amend
the wording they could make the changes.

The Committee considered the Portfolio Holder and Head of Democracy and
Governance’s comments. They felt that Members should be able to approach
Portfolio Holders for further information as they were ultimately responsible for
the service producing the Cabinet report. It was acknowledged that they may
have to refer to officers for a detailed explanation.

Councillor Watkin suggested that if that section of the Strategy remained as
drafted then it was necessary for Cabinet or the Portfolio Holders to be referred
to in the structure.

On being put to the Committee it was agreed that the Strategy should be
amended to incorporate Cabinet within the ‘Roles and Responsibilities’ section.

Corporate Risk Register

The Committee then reviewed the Corporate Risk Register.

Following questions from Councillor Khan, the Head of Democracy and
Governance explained how the risk rating could be reduced by control measures
being put in place. She advised that the Council had to consider the risks and
balance these against potential benefits for the Council and the town. Some of
the projects included on the register were not the Council’s responsibility, for
example Croxley Rail Link, but had been included as they affected the borough.
There might be occasions when the Council decided that a project might not be
suitable to continue further. In responding to a question about the council’s risk



appetite for investments she advised that other rules had to be taken into
account.

The Shared Director of Finance added that the Treasury Management Strategy
covered the Council’s investments and regular reports were presented to Budget
Panel and Cabinet.

In response to a question from the Chair, the Head of Democracy and
Governance advised that the role of Members and Cabinet was to consider the
risks included in reports and make a judgement whether the proposals should
continue. The register showed that the Council was aware of the risks involved
in schemes and how it would mitigate against the issues arising. Following a
question about the risk referred to for the Health Campus she explained the role
of the Hospital Trust in the Health Campus and that measures had been built
into agreements to enable the Trust’s role to change should it achieve
Foundation status. She added that, along with the Shared Director of Finance,
her role was to scrutinise the proposed risks and how they would be mitigated,
before inclusion in reports to Cabinet. She confirmed that the Audit Committee’s
role was to monitor the register.

Following a question about the risk referring to homelessness and how that was
being monitored, the Head of Democracy and Governance informed the
Committee that regular Heads of Service meetings took place. The group
monitored homelessness figures and what actions the relevant service was
taking to mitigate the issues. She confirmed that the Committee could ask for
more regular updates about the risk register. She added that more detailed
information should be included in a service’s Service Plan or departmental risk
register.

Councillor Brandon felt it was difficult for the Committee to fully scrutinise the risk
register without more detailed information.

The Head of Democracy and Governance advised that she would relay the
Committee’s comments to the Risk Management and Business Continuity
Steering Group, which she chaired. The format of the risk register had been
agreed when it had first been developed with the support of the Risk Manager
who had based their information on best practice.

Councillor Brandon questioned the financial limits, as any loss to the Council
was a concern for Council Taxpayers.

The Shared Director of Finance advised that the financial values could be
reviewed. She acknowledged that any loss of money would be a concern. She
said that if the Council were to lose up to £25,000 from a specific project then the
Council could probably absorb that loss without affecting the approved budget.

A loss of up to £100,000 could probably be managed but it would be more
difficult. Any loss above £100,000 would have an impact on the Council’s
finances. Having considered the levels she was satisfied with these limits.



26

The Committee agreed that any loss was a concern but when compared to the
Council’s overall budget the current levels were sufficient.

Richard Lawson from Grant Thornton, the Council’s external Auditor, stated that
it was important that risks were classified correctly. The financial figures needed
to be set at the right level.

RESOLVED -

1. that the Council’s Risk Management Strategy be approved subject to the
amendment agreed by the Committee.

2. that the Corporate Risk Register be noted.
REQUESTS MADE UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

The Committee received a report of the Head of Democracy and Governance
which provided the half year report of requests made under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000. The report covered the period from 1 April 2013 to 30
September 2013.

The Head of Democracy and Governance informed the Committee that some of
the information related to requests about IT had not been logged correctly and
since the publication of the report had been updated. Revenues and Benefits
had managed the backlog of requests and was responding to more recent
requests on time.

The Shared Director of Finance added that Freedom of Information (FOI)
requests and complaints for Revenues and Benefits were included in the weekly
and monthly management updates.

It was noted that there were a number of requests for information about funerals
arranged by the Council. The Head of Democracy and Governance explained
that under its Public Health duty the Council had to arrange funerals for those
people who died with no next of kin and no assets.

Councillor Williams noted the number of requests for information and asked
whether this was normal. He had noted that officers were still unable to obtain
benchmark information from other local authorities. He asked if it would be
possible to breakdown the information into the different Council departments and
whether officers felt this would be useful.

The Head of Democracy and Governance explained that every department had
an officer responsible for logging FOI requests on the Council’s software. There
were two officers within the Customer Service Centre who were responsible for
the overall management of FOls and collating multi service requests. Heads of
Service were provided with details of all FOI requests logged for their service
and whether they had been responded to in time. She advised that she
monitored the responses and contacted those services who were not meeting



the deadlines. IT and Revenues and Benefits had been the only services which
had caused any concern.

Councillor Watkin asked whether the responses to the FOI requests were in the
public domain.

The Head of Democracy and Governance informed the Committee that when
requests were submitted through the website https://www.whatdotheyknow.com/
the Council’s response was added to the website. The information was then
publicly available. One consideration was whether the Council wanted to publish
all responses online. There was a concern that the data might overload the
Council’'s website. She was unaware of any reason why a response could not
be disclosed to a third party if requested.

Councillor Brandon said that some of the requests showed a trend and if the
information was provided it might cut down on some of the repeated
submissions.

The Shared Director of Finance advised that the Council’'s Publication Scheme
set out what information was available and where to find it. In response to an
FOI request it was possible to direct people to other sources of information.

Councillor Khan commented that some of the requests appeared to be questions
and not specific FOI requests. He noted that a complaint had been included in
the list. The Head of Democracy and Governance advised that the Council took
the stance that any questions submitted should be treated as an FOI request.

It was noted that Councillor Watkin was included as having submitted a FOI
request. He said that all Members asked questions and why his had been
considered a FOI. The Head of Democracy and Governance replied that the
officer who had taken the request for information possibly felt it should be logged
as an FOL.

The Shared Director of Finance added that the Information Commissioner stated
that a request for information should be considered an FOI if a question was
posed.

Councillor Taylor referred to Parliamentary questions and how it was possible to
refuse to respond due to the cost of completing that request. He asked whether
Councils could do the same.

The Head of Democracy and Governance confirmed that local authorities were
able to refuse FOI requests if a response would take longer than 18 hours to find
the information, at a cost of £25 per hour. If the person challenged the refusal
the Council would need to be able to provide evidence to support its response.
There were occasions when the Council did not hold the requested information,
for example about schools, or specific exemptions applied which restricted the
release of information.



27

28

Councillor Brandon noted the request for information about Farm Terrace
Allotments. He asked whether it was possible to see the response. The Head of
Democracy and Governance confirmed that she would circulate the answer to
the Committee.

RESOLVED -
that the contents of the report be noted.
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - ACTION PLAN UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Head of Finance Shared Services which
provided details of the progress in implementing the actions required in the
2012/13 Annual Governance Statement.

Following a question from Councillor Khan, the Head of Finance Shared
Services explained that the report presented the current progress in
implementing the actions. No target dates had been set in the plan. If further
work was required the action would be included in the Annual Governance
Statement for 2013/14.

RESOLVED -
that the progress made against the action plan be noted.
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received reports from the Head of Finance Shared Services and
the Shared Internal Audit Service.

Councillor Khan referred to the recommendations related to remote working. He
said that the deadlines appeared to have been missed.

The ICT Client Manager confirmed that all policies and procedures had been
completed. They had been approved by Three Rivers District Council’s
Management Board and the IT Steering Group. Consideration had been given
to how the information would be distributed to staff. It would be included as part
of e-learning modules for staff.

In response to a question about security settings on mobile devices, the ICT
Client Manager informed the Committee that this matter was covered by the
Public Service Network (PSN) Directive. The Councils were working with Capita
to develop a roadmap to deliver the PSN related work for 2014 and 2015. The
Cabinet Office had recently re-issued guidance and the timeframe for completion
for specific conditions related to unmanaged end user devices for PSN
accreditation in 2015. For example, any mobile phone solutions would need to
be in place by December 2015. She explained that additional protocols were in
the process of being put in place if officers wished to access their non-secure
(non-GCSX) emails on mobile devices. The protocol change would mean that
information would be encrypted in transmission.



The ICT Client Manager advised the Committee that Price Waterhouse Cooper
was currently reviewing the IT vulnerabilities audit from 2012. Any controls
related to achieving the PSN standards were also included within the Price
Waterhouse Cooper review.

In response to a question about the recommendation related to a framework for
the procurement of agency staff, the Head of Finance Shared Services advised
that he was unaware of the present position and would need to circulate the
information after the meeting.

Councillor Khan referred to the recommendations about IT back up and disaster
recovery. He asked for an explanation regarding further delays in this work
being completed. He was concerned about the security of the systems. The
date of the move to Capita’s Data Centre was constantly being changed.

The ICT Client Manager explained that the dates were originally based on
information from Capita. Further processes had needed to be implemented prior
to the move to the data centre and this work needed to be tested. The dates had
also been changed due to critical deadlines at both authorities, including the
closure of accounts at the end of year and elections. The work already carried
out to meet PSN requirements for 2013 mitigated the risks with the IT system.

The Shared Director of Finance confirmed that since the original date had been
set, the PSN directive had required work to be completed. This work had
therefore had an impact on the date of the move to the data centre. She
assured members that the Councils’ management were aware of the issues. It
was necessary to do the work in the right order. The matters raised through
PSN were already on the list of required works. She added that PSN was a
Government directive.

The ICT Client Manager said that the work required for PSN had involved
introducing new firewalls and how servers communicated. She informed
Members that the work on the move to the data centre had not stopped. The
design documentation for the virtual server environment had been completed
and fortnightly project meetings were being held.

The Head of Finance Shared Services explained that the format of the report set
out the history of the actions taken and the progress of the recommendations.
The latest information was printed in bold.

RESOLVED -

1. that the Internal Audit Progress Report be noted.

2. that the amendments to the Audit Plan as at 6 December 2013 be
approved.

3. that the removal of implemented recommendations be agreed.



29

30

4. thatthe changes to the implementation date for 11 recommendations be
agreed.

EXTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee received a report of the Head of Finance Shared Services which
provided details of the progress in implementing the external auditor’s
recommendations.

Following a question from Councillor Brandon, the Shared Director of Finance
advised that there had been improvements in processing the ATLAS files.
Before Christmas the service was more or less up to date with processing the
data. There had been a slight change due to Christmas and IT issues, but it was
manageable. She would circulate the latest information to the Committee.

RESOLVED -

that the progress in implementing the external auditor's recommendations be
noted.

CERTIFICATION REPORT 2012/13 - HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX
BENEFIT

The Committee received a report from the Council’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton. Richard Lawson presented the report. He advised that there were
two ‘medium’ recommendations contained in the report.

The Committee discussed the delay in the Council submitting the national non
domestic rate return.

Richard Lawson explained that this was a new requirement for the 2012/13
returns. The information had been requested from the Council in June but it had
been received late. The return had to be submitted in September. Initially the
request had been sent to the previous Revenues Manager, but he had already
left the authority.

The Shared Director of Finance added that the service had received the request
at the last minute from the external auditor. The information was provided for
one authority but not the other. The external auditor would normally request the
service’s working papers. On this occasion there had been a communication
breakdown and she assured Members that the matter had been discussed with
the external auditor and there were no difficulties between them.

Following a question about the additional fees required from the auditor, Richard
Lawson explained that this had been due to the late submission of data and the
external auditor being required to populate the data into the analytical review
module.

The Shared Director of Finance advised that she had not been aware that there
had been a problem and would ensure the information was made available. She



added that accuracy was checked on a daily basis in order to ensure that the
claims would be more accurate when submitted in the future.

Richard Lawson confirmed that it would be unusual if a claim was 100%
accurate.

Councillor Watkin stated that a report would be presented to Joint Shared
Services Committee setting out the extensive work taking place in Revenues and
Benefits. The service was much improved.

Following a further question about he delay and any financial implications, the
Shared Director of Finance responded that she assumed the delay had been to
ensure the submission was as accurate as possible. The additional audit fees
had been less than the amount which would have been deducted due to any
errors.

RESOLVED -
that the contents of the Certification Report be noted.

31 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE UPDATE

The Committee received two reports from the Council’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton. Richard Lawson presented the reports. He explained that the Audit
Committee Update provided information that the external auditor felt would be of
interest to Members.

Following a question about the certification of the Housing and Council Tax
Benefits scheme, Richard Lawson explained that the deadline had been 29
November. The process had not been completed by the time the Annual Audit
Letter had had to be produced. The Shared Director of Finance confirmed that it
had since been completed.

In response to question about the financial governance review being given an
amber rating, the Shared Director of Finance informed the Committee that the
service was now processing the ATLAS amendments from the DWP on a daily
basis. The budgetary controls of the revenues and benefits shared service were
reported in the Finance Digest which was regularly presented to Budget Panel.

RESOLVED -

that the contents of the Annual Audit Letter and the Audit Committee update be
noted.

Chair
The Meeting started at 7.00 pm
and finished at 9.05 pm



10



